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The State Arsenal was completed in 1839 from the designs of Russell
Warren for the First Regiment of Light Infantry (Providence Journal, Marchy
15, 1839); its cost was $ 3,000. It is a gabled structure of eighty bi\il

311 or in part incised or painted to give the effect of regular d
ashlar). It is of two-storey height above a basement set into a
sloping hillside site--the site conditions being the same bBoth be
and after the bullding was moved. This basement does not show whe
the building's (east) entrance elevation on Benefit Street is viewew
This fagade, rising directly from the sidewalk, has a gabled centre sets W
tion, which originally had battlements on the slopes of the gable, with a: |-
&two-storey portal, slightly recessed, of pointed Gothic form. Only the
lower portion of this heavily panelled and iron-studded portal, which is
divided in two by a horizontal transom, contains workable doors. Flank-
ing the centre section are two square, battlemented towers pushed out Irom
the front corners of the building; these towers haye parrow slit-windows
at three levels. The main body of the uilding runs back towards the
west for a length of five bays and is very plain. Its tall windows are

N

digmond-paned and are protected externally by strong, black-painted iron

o vt e o~ o e

shutters.

343

Within, the main floor is given over entirely to the large drill-
hall except for a small vestibule inside the portal, a very shallow hall-
way, the stairs in the towers,a small janitor's office and a lavatory.
Three Tudor arches of good width and height occupy the main spaces of the
drill-hall's east end: one contains the principal door into that hall;
the other two accommodate auxiliary folding doors below and projecting
balconies at stair-landing-levél above. The second floor is divided into
two large and one small rooms, a coat-room and another ldvatory. Space
in the basement is taken by a museum room, a large storage room, kitchen,
heater and lavatory areas. |
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Woodwork throughout the building is.generally of dark-stained,
simply panelied wainscot form, with some trim employing pointed arches and
some panel one—imthe linenfold design. The drill-hall's ceiling
has exposed beams forming narrow compartments (supposedly supported by
curved brackets around the four sides), and here the wood has been painted.
The transverse beanis have been given a slight concavity, or minimally
arched effect, on their lower sides, and there are _turned wooden pendants
where major beams intersect--altogether the simplest of Gothid Revival

decorative treatment.

The building was in 1906 moved a very short distance north to the
corner of Benefit and Meeting Streets, when it became imperative-to put
a railroad tunnel under its original site. It has been excellently main-
tained both inside and out, its utility equipment etc. kept.up to date.
It is in frequent, thought not constant, use.
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srf*r émsr;rr OF SiIGNIFICANCE

.;‘@%? The State Arsenal is in its locale a small but important example of

~early battlemented Gothic Revival architecture, a pseudo-fortress appro-
prlate to 1ts internal milltla “activities, It is one of the few excur-

sions into the Gothic manner by Rissell Warren, a Rhéde Island native who
was one of the outstanding architects in this and other states during the

full firgt half of the XIX Century. The arsenal is an important part of
ourdrchitectural legacy, an important property of the state and also an

important component of the College Hill Historic Distrlct, already a

major listing, en bloc,in the Natlonal egister.

It was erected for the First Light Infantry, but that corps found
itself eventually unable to cpmplete payment.for the building it had had
construsted. The building was then, in the 1850's, taken over by the
state, which leased back the property for a 1,000-year period at an an-
nual rate of six-and-one quarter cebts. During the Dorr Rebellion in
Rhode Island, in 1842, state ammunition and state troops were housed in
the arsenal along with the Marine Corps of Artillery and the Kentish
‘Guards of East Greenwich, who had been called up to help protect the
building.

When-~-later in the mid-XIX-Century--the infantry unit left to
occupy larger quarters, the lease was taken by the Marine Corps o Artil-
lery, and they have heen there éver since. This latter volunteer mili-
tary body was chartered in 1801 by the Providence Marine Society, an
assoclation of merchants and ship-owners, and was the first militia bat-
talion of light artillery in the United States. It has been the parent
body of all artillery sent in all wars from the Civil War through World
War II. The corps has until the recent past used the building for drill
and training, for many social events; it is offlcially seated there} it
preserves its records, relics and portraits, its Barker Artillery Museum
of World War TII (named for one of its many mewbers outstanding in wartime
accomplishment) in the arsenal.

(See Gontinuation Sheet .)
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8. Significance.

+ The building is omened occasionally for the meetings or entertaimments
 of various historical and social groups and for special touring groups; and
the drill-hall frovides a good ballroom floor for a weekly dancing class.

At present, there are are thoughts and negotiations regarding future use of
'the arsehal as office headquarters for a distinguished group of military
 scholars, historians and collectors. This organisation, utilising those

' spaces hot retained by the Marine Corps of Artillery, could contribute sub-

t stantially to the bullding's upkeep and its necessary architectural preser-
vation--at the same time giving it more use and supervision than it now en-
Fjoys and making it more available for visitation.
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